ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE

February 6, 2003
1:30 p.m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Con Bunde, Chair
Senat or Ral ph Seeki ns
Senat or Bettye Davis
Senator Hollis French
VEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Al an Auster man

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 20
"An Act extending the termnation date of

Pilots; and providing for an effective date.

HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
SB 20 - No previous action to record.
W TNESS REG STER

Senator Therriaul t

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 20.

Senat or Dyson

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Co-sponsor of SB 20.

M. R ck Uion, Drector

Di vi sion of Cccupational Licensing

Depart ment of Labor & Workforce
Devel opnent

PO Box 21149

Juneau, AK 99802-1149

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 20.

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE -1-

the Board of Marine

February 6, 2003



Ms. Kate Tesar

Al aska Yacht Services

Juneau AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conment ed on yacht exenption issues.

Captain Robert Wnter

Sout heast Al aska Pilots Associ ation

9370 View Dr.

Juneau AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 20 and commented on yacht
exenption issues.

M. Joe Cel dhof

United States Navy League, Juneau Chapter
229 4th Street

Juneau AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 20.

Captain Dale Collins, President

Sout heast Al aska Pil ots Associ ation
4212 Tongass Hwy.

Ket chi kan AK 99901

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 20.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-3, SIDE A

CHAIR CON BUNDE called the Senate Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:30 p.m Present were Senators

Davis, French, Seekins and Chair Bunde. Senator Austerman was
excused. The first order of busi ness was SB 20.

SB 20- EXTEND BOARD OF MARI NE PI LOTS

SENATOR THERRI AULT, sponsor of SB 20, said the Board of Marine
Pilots underwent an audit review, from which the follow ng
recommendat i ons were nade:

1. The Board of Marine Pilots should ensure that regional
pil ot associations admnister mandatory random drug
testing pr ogr ans in a manner consi st ent wth
establ i shed regul atory standards.

2. The Board of Marine Pilots should establish nore
informative and conprehensive reporting requirenents
so the nmarine pilot coordinator can confirm an

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 2- February 6, 2003



appropriate nunber of licensed pilots are consistently
bei ng subjected to randomtesting.

3. The Legislature should <consider anending current
statutes in order to extend mandatory drug and al cohol
testing to pilot and organization trainees and
apprentices.

4. The Board of Marine Pilots should seek statutory
authority to allow the board the discretion to grant
wai vers of pilotage requirenents to |arge pleasure
craft. This is a conplicated issue as there are
honel and security issues and other issues that need to
be dealt wth.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said additional issues need to be discussed,
but he would like to see those addressed in a different bill

SENATOR DYSQN, co-sponsor of SB 20, said that 90 percent of
Al aska's freight is seaborne and the North Pacific is one of the
nore dangerous water bodies in the world that requires |ocal
know edge to navi gate.

The Coast Guard has honel and security responsibilities and their
first line of defense is tracking vessels offshore that are
approaching our shoreline and ports. They are developing a
sophi sticated systemto require every vessel over 300 gross tons
to have a transponder on it. The Coast CGuard is al so asking al
vessels entering Al askan waters to preregister with specific
i nformation.

The Coast Guard’ s next line of defense is to put a pilot on the
boat at the three-mle |imt or at sonme safe |ocation. The Coast
GQuard counts on that pilot to be the first person to see if
anything is wong. This is a very key part of honeland security.
Those pilots will follow protocols for alerting the appropriate
authorities if they suspect a problem

CHAIR BUNDE asked Senator Dyson if he was urging caution when
granting an exenption for security reasons.

SENATOR DYSON said he has been a part of an ongoing discussion
for the last year and a half on these issues, but the
st akehol ders are, at best, nonths away from agreeing on a fina
posi tion.

CHAIR BUNDE asked if it is nore reasonable, as far as
enforcenent goes, to discuss length limts instead of gross

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 3- February 6, 2003



tonnage because the average citizen would be better able to nmake
that type of judgnent.

SENATOR DYSON replied he didn't have a good answer because
argunents coul d be made both ways.

1:45 p. m

SENATOR FRENCH asked if all vessels have to pre-register and
have transponders on board right now.

SENATOR DYSON advised that the Coast CGuard is requiring all
comer ci al foreign vessels to pre-register and they are
considering extending the 96-hour requirenent to actually pre-
clearing a vessel before it leaves its port of origin. The
vessel s would be inspected before going to sea and the manifest
certified. Hopefully the nmanifest wouldn't change while the
vessel is at sea.

CHAIR BUNDE inserted that transponders are required of vessels
over 300 gross tons.

SENATOR DYSON stated that a sophisticated system of tracking
transponders has been devel oped here in Juneau.

SENATOR SEEKINS noted that that system tracks transponders, not
necessarily the vessels. He pointed out that a terrorist could
nove a transponder easily and rem nded nenbers that, "It was an
infl atable that took out the side of the USS Col e."

He asked if a tineline had been set for comng up with sone
suggesti ons.

SENATOR DYSON replied yes, but he didn't know what it is. He
noted there are huge vulnerabilities, but a lot of conpanies
have a very good track record and are relatively lowrisk. The
Coast CGuard wants to find all the ones that are lowrisk, so
they can concentrate their attention on the ones they don't know
about .

SENATOR SEEKINS said it looks like nost people who want an
exenption to the pilot rule are foreign flagged vessels that are
owned by U.S. corporations.

2:50 p.m

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE -4- February 6, 2003



SENATOR THERRI AULT returned to the wtness stand and said he
would like to see these issues addressed in a bill separate from
SB 20.

CHAIR BUNDE asked if he was aware of any great |legislative
opposition to introduci ng another bill

SENATOR THERRI AULT replied that he thought there was sone
interest in [fostering] economc activity from yachts, but that
is a conplex issue. He maintained there is no question that the
board is operating in a correct fashion and shoul d be extended.

MR RICK URION, Director, Dvision of GQOccupational Licensing,
supported SB 20. He informed nenbers that, "If it becones
sonething in addition to what it is now, we may well reserve the
right to cone back and tal k about what the conditions are.”

M5. KATE TESAR, Al askan Yacht Servicing and Provisioning, a
small | ocal business, said this business caters to the |arge
yachts that conme into Southeast Al aska. Her client works in the
industry and shipped out for two weeks so that's why she is
appearing for her.

M5. TESAR said she has experience in this field having worked
for 12 years for one of the defunct pilot groups and was
involved in the myjor rewite of the marine pilotage laws in
1991 and 1995. She has also worked as a consultant to cruise
lines traveling in Alaska and had a business simlar to the one
she is representing in the wearly 1980s. She supports the
extension of the Board of Marine Pilots and said it is operating
better than it ever has in the past.

She added that she supports anmending the statute to allow
foreign flag vessels of over 300 tons to cone into Alaska
without a marine pilot on board. She explained that | aw was put
into effect in 1995 and at that tinme a decision was made to
exenpt all U S. pleasure craft of any size from pilotage "So
right now, if it is a US. registered vessel, it can travel
anywhere in the state without pilotage."

M5. TESAR said she would like to see Al aska use a system simlar
to the one that's been in effect in Washington state since 1977,
which would allow these vessels to cone into Alaska if they are
less than 500 tons or 200 ft. She explained that British
Colunmbia also has a waiver system in place and that Alaska is
losing out to British Colunbia regarding scheduling of those
yachts in our waters.

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 5- February 6, 2003



She said a major rewite of the Marine Pilotage Act took place
in 1991 and some changes were made in 1995 when the sunset
| anguage canme up. In 1999, the sunset cane up again and an
agreenent was made between all parties that the |anguage would
remain as is with the only change being the one-line extension
of the Board. People did not realize the gromh that was going
to take place in this industry. Prior to 1995, anyone on a
pl easure craft of any size could cone into the United States and
Al aska without a marine pilot. In 1995 the decision was nmade to
exenpt by law all the U S. flagged vessels. At that time the 300
gross ton limt on foreign flagged vessels was put into | aw.

CHAI R BUNDE asked the length of a vessel of 300 gross tons.

M5. TESAR replied that there is no correlation between tonnage,
|l ength and size. She explained the 300 gross ton statute was
enacted because a vessel 700 to 900 ft. belonging to a mgjor
environmental group in the United States was cruising in Al aska
during the summer doi ng research

CHAI R BUNDE i nserted, "The Rai nbow Warrior."

M5. TESAR affirmed that and explained the concern was that a
vessel that large was carrying passengers and a |arge amount of
fuel in Alaskan waters without a pilot onboard. At that tine,
all US craft of any size were exenpted. She stated, "So, you
can have two ships that are exactly the sanme size, sanme crews,
both built in the United States, but for many reasons these
| arge ships are flagged in other countries....”

CHAIR BUNDE asked if U S. flagged vessels are allowed to have
foreign crew

M5. TESAR replied that U S flagged vessels have to adhere to
the Jones Act, which is another reason offshore destinations are
| ooked at. She stated, "I wll say that 90 percent of ships of
this class that are traveling around the world now are
registered in Geat Britain. They are known as the naritine
chiefs and | know the mpjority of the ships’ masters and
captains are either British or of U S. origin."

She said there is no reporting systemin place to indicate who
is comng to Alaska, when they are here or anything el se. Coast
GQuard regulations are in place and require a 98-hour report and
a new 24-hour report. If Alaska follows the Washington waiver
system there is a place on the application for this

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 6- February 6, 2003



information. Her <client has no problem with the transponder
i ssue. She stated her client is totally interested in the safety
issues and there are already very stringent safety regulations
that the nmulti-mllion dollar yachts have to adhere to regarding
every aspect of operation, including insurance, which is a huge
i ssue.

M5. TESAR said the legislative vehicle for this issue hasn't
been deci ded yet, but her group feels that changes to the marine
pilot statutes are [usually] in the bill that extends the board.
However, they do not want to hold up the bill

2:08 p.m

SENATOR FRENCH asked if the Coast Guard is the agency that
collects information on the boats that are comng to and from
Al aska and whether they would know how many boats are being
affected.

M5. TESAR replied it is her understanding that the Coast CGuard
collects that information 98 hours and 24 hours prior to a
vessel entering U S. waters, but she had not seen the form

CHAIR BUNDE said he would appreciate her group conming to the
conmmittee next week with a united front.

M5. TESAR agreed and said the general paraneters have been
agreed upon and sonme of the specifics would be worked out.

CAPTAIN ROBERT W NTER, Sout heast Al aska Mar i ne Pilots
Association, said he is a State of Alaska Marine Pilot and a
retired Coast Guard officer. He has been going to sea for over
37 years and 25 of those have been in Southeast Al aska. The
Al aska Marine Pilotage Act is the envy of many states and Al aska
is on the cutting edge of marine training to ensure that pilots
are at the top of their profession. He urged nenbers to extend
t he board.

CAPTAIN WNTER said he is conmtted to working wth the
Legislature to help others who need changes to the Marine
Pilotage Act, "...as long as those changes maintain the highest
standards in pilotage, safety and environnental concerns.”

CHAIR BUNDE said if the larger U S. flagged vessels are all owed
in Alaska waters without pilots, why would different |aws apply
to foreign flagged vessels or vice versa. He questioned whether
U. S. flagged vessels need pilots when they go to foreign ports.

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE -7- February 6, 2003



CAPTAIN WNTER replied that it's difficult when |ooking at both
state and federal statutes to require a U S. flagged vessel with
a US master and U.S. licensed crew that neets the Jones Act to
have a pilot. He explained that |arge vessels nust have a
federal pilot; the ferries are considered to be "enrolled
vessel s"; and Alaska state pilots have federal pi | ot age
qgual i fications.

CHAIR BUNDE asked if the general line of demarcation for
requiring a pilot is 300 gross tons or nore.

2:12 p.m
CAPTAIN WNTER replied that is correct. He told nenbers:

To give you a nunber on how big a 300 gross ton ship
is - York Town Clipper, if you're famliar with it, is
one of the cruise ships out here that is 250 ft., 99
gross tons. Her international tonnage is on the order
of 3,000 gross tons. Because she's built to subchapter
T of the Coast Guard regulations, or the CFR, all her
accommodati ons open to a weather deck, so none of the
cabin space counts as gross tonnage.... It's not an
easy - they're built to be rule-beaters, to be able to
carry as nmuch as you can under 99 gross tons, because
the requirements for safety, for everything is much
|l ess for T boats - which is under 99 gross tons. Al
the big catamarans you see around here are 99 gross
tons and they carry 300 peopl e.

He added that the American Pilots Association (APA) was getting
information from the Lower 48 states on how they deal wth
yachts. He advi sed:

Virginia gives waivers, Florida gives waivers only for
vessels that draw less than seven feet of water,
Maryl and gives waivers for only vessels less than 100
gross tons, Delaware was less than 100 gross tons,
they just went up to 300 gross tons. So, every state
kind of deals with it how they choose and | think
depending wupon the geography of the state m ght
determ ne how you deal with it.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if other states maintain the same U S flag

versus foreign flag distinction in their pilotage or |abor
process.

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 8- February 6, 2003



CAPTAIN WNTER replied they do as far as he knew, but advised
Senator French "not to take that to the bank."” He added the
APA's | egal counsel was going to have the report on all of the
requirenents in other states ready soon.

MR JOE GCELDHOF, United States Navy League, explained that
Theodore Roosevelt and other individuals concerned about
maritinme security founded the | eague in 1902. Now the |eague is
an advocacy group for the U S. Navy, Mrine Corps, the Coast
Guard and the Merchant Marine. He said the |eague is asking for
a warship exenption from pilotage and explained that the
Chi | ean, Japanese and Tai wanese Navies work hard in the Gulf and
when they cone into Juneau or Skagway to relax, they wouldn't be
faced with the pilotage fees. He pointed out:

In all |likelihood there would be soneone wth an
Anmerican or soneone wth piloting experience and |
think the correct technical reading of our existing
| aw, and this has been problematic in sone few cases,
particularly with the Canadi an Navy, they are required
to pay them and because they hadn’t been budgeted it
nmeant no liberty call or no visitation in Al aska
coastal waters.

MR, CGELDHOF said he was willing to work on finding the proper
| anguage. He sunmarized that basically the | eague does not want
warships to get nickel and dined on pilotage. However, he
strongly supports having this issue dealt with in SB 20,
"because it's going to pass...."

TAPE 03-3, SIDE B

CAPTAIN DALE COLLI NS, Presi dent, Sout heast Alaska Pilots
Associ ation (SAPA), said SAPA supports SB 20 and would work to
resolve the yacht issue. He said, as it relates to the Pilotage
Act, the State of Alaska is only enpowered to regulate foreign
fl agged vessels under registry and U S. flagged vessels that are
sailing foreign. He said this is a key point, "If a vessel is
US flagged and sailing coastal wunder enrollnent, you cone
under the jurisdiction of the U S. Coast CGuard. No state has
been granted the right to regulate the novenent of U S. flagged
vessel s and coast-w se trade that are under enrollnent."

CAPTAIN COLLINS said the Coast Guard would require such a vesse

to have at least one trip in the area or it would have to have
"a first class pilot on board® for that size vessel. He

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 9- February 6, 2003



continued, "So, even the United States does not I|let any 300
gross tons or nore sail into our Alaska state water with a U S
flag under enrollnment and go through Wangell Narrows if they
haven't seen it at |east once."

He thought that the exenption for foreign flagged vessels of
| ess than 300 gross tons has been in statute since 1970. Another
issue is why those vessels wouldn't want a pilot on board. It
isn'"t an issue of economics as originally thought, but it cones
dowmn to an issue of privacy. Regarding warships from other
countries, all U S. warships are exenpt from state pilotage but,
"They all take pilots except in their hone ports. The principles
of good seamanship apply that you wouldn't want to necessarily
sail into waters that you weren't intimately famliar with and
try to navigate coastal waters."

He said he does not want to see anything attached to SB 20,
because there are lots of issues and exceptions that wll take
time to consider

CHAIR BUNDE said the commttee would work on this issue and

bring it up again next Thursday. He then adjourned the neeting
at 2:28 p.m

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE -10- February 6, 2003



